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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Before we start

          3  the hearing, I want to introduce my colleagues who

          4  are here, and I will mention those that are not.

          5                 Starting from my left, Councilwoman

          6  Annabelle Palma.  Minority Leader James Oddo; and

          7  Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano, who is not part of

          8  the Committee, but is always welcome. Councilman

          9  Charles Barron.  Our Deputy Majority Leader, Council

         10  Member Leroy Comrie.

         11                 Somehow I don't like that at all. Are

         12  you part of the Rules Committee? You're the Chair.

         13  Can you do something about the Whip business? Okay.

         14                 On my right, Councilman Oliver

         15  Koppell.  And, of course, the wonderful staff at

         16  Land Use. I have to think about it. I have to think

         17  about it. I respect the tradition. But I'm breaking

         18  out. I don't know.

         19                 I just want to mention one other

         20  thing. During the last meeting, many of the members

         21  had a briefing on the School Construction five-year

         22  budget plan and how that's going to happen and how

         23  our voting on schools, how does that interact with

         24  the budget. Especially with the questions that

         25  Councilman Oddo and Councilman Barron and some
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          2  others asked about voting on things that we don't

          3  even know how they're going to be budgeted; thanks

          4  to the Land Use Committee, I think, Alonzo, am I

          5  right?

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Who is not here

          8  today, arranged quickly for us to have a seminar or

          9  a briefing with Jeff Rotas and himself and Pat. I

         10  think it was very, very informative. Many of the

         11  members couldn't make it, but there was a lot of

         12  staff there. I don't think it's what we wanted to

         13  hear, but I think at least it gave us the

         14  understanding. I think the basic summary of that and

         15  the reason I'm saying this, is I don't want this

         16  hearing to become into another briefing. That was

         17  the purpose of that briefing. The basic summary of

         18  that, according to the people who know how it works,

         19  was that either we vote for the schools or they

         20  don't get built. And voting no, we can vote these

         21  schools down, but voting the schools down means

         22  making a statement, whether you want to call it a

         23  moral statement or something else, otherwise,

         24  because it takes them years and years to find places

         25  to build schools. The fact is that when we vote for
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          2  these, it as though we're saying for the sake of the

          3  City, we'd rather have x number of schools built

          4  than no schools built at all.

          5                 I'm not trying to convince any member

          6  of the Committee, particularly someone sitting

          7  nearby, to vote or not to vote. But that's the fact.

          8  I think that anybody who had staff member at the

          9  hearing, that was the end of it. I'm just saying

         10  this as preface. Because we're going to be deciding

         11  about a school. I don't want to get involved again

         12  in the conversation about the budget, the five- year

         13  budget plan. Everyone on the Committee is entitled

         14  to say whatever they want. But in terms of

         15  questioning about how this works, we had the

         16  opportunity, I think, to find out. We may like it.

         17  We may not like it. But, that was it.

         18                 We're dealing, again, with an item

         19  that was laid over. I welcome again all, I don't

         20  remember the names of the schools. Five schools. Six

         21  schools. Where are the students from? Can you come

         22  over to the witness table? You don't have to be

         23  sworn in. Don't worry about it. Just let us know

         24  where they're from. Just push the button for a

         25  moment.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We're from the

          3  Christopher Columbus Campus Schools. Represented are

          4  Aster Collegic Academy (phonetic).

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Who's here from

          6  Aster Collegic? Anybody here from Aster Collegic?

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They haven't

          8  gone in yet.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: They haven't gone

         10  in yet. Okay. What else?

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Bronx High

         12  School of the Visual Arts.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Bronx High School

         14  of the Visual Arts. Anybody? Excellent. What else?

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Christopher

         16  Columbus Institute for Math and Science.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Anyone here from

         18  Christopher Columbus, raise your hand. Welcome.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Math and

         20  Science. Christopher Columbus High School.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Christopher

         22  Columbus High School? Okay.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Global

         24  Enterprise Academy.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excellent.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And Pelham

          3  Preparatory Academy.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excellent. Well,

          5  we are all delighted to see you again. I know that

          6  some people say --

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: -- Some people

          9  say that you're here because we're voting on some

         10  kind of school in your area. But we know that you

         11  are so impressed with the way City government

         12  operates last time you were here that you demanded

         13  to come back again to be part of things. I assume

         14  Councilwoman Provenzano that this is all in your

         15  district?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: They're

         17  all in my district.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Wonderful.

         19  Excellent. LU 132, Bronx Community Board 1320045392

         20  SCX.  Application submitted by the New York City

         21  School Construction Authority, pursuant Section 1732

         22  of the New York State Public Authority Law for a

         23  proposed new 630 seat high school facility for

         24  instruction region number two located at 50 Antom

         25  Place (phonetic). Block 4290, lot 323648 and 100, at

                                                            8

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  any other property in the proposed area that may be

          3  necessary for the post facility. This again was laid

          4  over from the meeting of Subcommittee of Zoning and

          5  Franchises on April 9, 2004.

          6                 I apologize that we don't have enough

          7  seats for all of you. I'm very sorry. Maybe next

          8  time you'll come back again in smaller groups and

          9  we'll be able to accommodate that. We have a number

         10  of people who want to testify. I think we're going

         11  to first from the School Construction Authority,

         12  Gregory P. Shaw and Kenrick Oh.

         13                 Absolutely, It would be our honor to

         14  have Councilwoman Provenzano in who's district you

         15  all are. You have not been called. Ms. Cahill, you

         16  have not been called to testify. But they're not in

         17  charge. You don't have to apologize. Guilt will

         18  leave for the home. You don't have to apologize. We

         19  have a surprise for you later. It's good, don't

         20  worry about it. Thank you very much.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. Wait a moment. I'm happy to see all my

         23  kids from Columbus. I didn't know you were coming. I

         24  would have been happier if someone had called my

         25  office and told me what was going on. But I welcome
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          2  all of you. I know you're concerns. I'm your

          3  Councilwoman. I'm aware of your problems. I have to

          4  be Solomon today without cutting the baby in half.

          5  That's going to be difficult. But I think at the end

          6  of this hearing everybody will be happy. I hope so.

          7  I'm going to try and make that happen.

          8                 I welcome all of you. I'm sorry that

          9  there is not enough room. If we had arranged this

         10  better -- I ask you decide who will speak. That we

         11  have one spokesperson so we don't delay this hearing

         12  anymore than we have to. Okay. You'll work that out?

         13  Okay. Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair. I would just like to register my vote. I have

         16  some pressing matters I have to take care of across

         17  the street. I'd like to vote aye on all Landmark and

         18  Siting items on the calendar.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         22  I also have some obligations. Therefore, I would

         23  like to vote at this time if my name could be called

         24  with your indulgence.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. We're

          4  ready.

          5                 MR. SHAW: Thank you. My name is

          6  Gregory Shaw. I'm the Principal Attorney for the

          7  School Construction Authority in the area of real-

          8  estate. Today it is my privilege to speak to you,

          9  Chairperson Felder, as well as the other Council

         10  Members. Thanks for giving us this opportunity to

         11  present the site plan to this Subcommittee.

         12                 This particular site plan was

         13  submitted to the Speaker Gifford Miller, and the

         14  City Council on April 15, as well as the Mayor. The

         15  New York City School Construction Authority is

         16  undertaking its site selection process for the

         17  following proposed school. A 630 seat high school

         18  facility located in the Borough of the Bronx. A

         19  notice of filing of the site plan was published in

         20  the New York Post and the City Record on February

         21  25, 2004. And also submitted to the Bronx Community

         22  Board No. 11 was notified as well as on February 25.

         23  And Community Board No. 11 was also notified on

         24  March 18, 2004.

         25                 Community Board No. 11 sent comments
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          2  recommending that a site be acquired and renovated

          3  for primary facility instead of a high school. They

          4  objected to a high school. The City Planning

          5  Commission was also notified on February 25 and

          6  submitted comments recommending approval of the

          7  proposed site for high school facility. The

          8  Authority has considered all comments received on

          9  the proposed project and affirms the site plan

         10  pursuant to 1731, subsection 5 of the Public

         11  Authority's Law. In accordance with Section 1732 of

         12  the Public Authority's Law, the Authority is

         13  submitting the site plan to the Mayor and Council

         14  for their review and consideration and approval.

         15                 The Authority looks forward to your

         16  favorable comments and for your approval of this

         17  site plan. The proposed project which is located in

         18  the Morris Parks Section of the Bronx on the South

         19  side of the Antom Place between Bronxdale and Brady

         20  Avenues is the site of the former Bronx Campus of

         21  Mercy College. The proposed project calls for the

         22  acquisition of the site and renovation of existing

         23  classroom building into a new high school facility

         24  serving up to 630 students.

         25                 At this time, I conclude my remarks
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          2  and we are open for any questions that you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          4  colleagues have any questions?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I was not

          6  at the last hearing. But it's my understanding that

          7  you're invited here to discuss the five- year

          8  capital plan and if that basically bombs, what do we

          9  use for money for schools such as this?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Would you allow

         11  me to answer that?

         12                 MR. SHAW: Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think that the

         14  answer to that question, again, is part of what this

         15  briefing we had Friday. I don't think that if I may

         16  be presumptuous, I don't think that he can answer

         17  that question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. I

         19  thought I that I heard --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, no. What I

         21  said was that we had a briefing on Friday for the

         22  people at our Finance Division and Land Use Division

         23  to try to explain to us exactly what will take

         24  place. The purpose of my saying that was to try to

         25  make sure that no one brings it up.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Oh, okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How was that? Is

          4  that direct?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That means

          8   --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, no. I would

         10  just recommend. I would recommend if it's okay with

         11  you to speak to our Finance Division and Land Use

         12  Division.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. No

         14  problem.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And they have

         16  volunteered to give members individual briefings

         17  about the same material. Unless you want to answer

         18  the question.

         19                 MR. SHAW: No, I think you've done

         20  quite well. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Any other

         24  questions? Okay. Thank you very much.

         25                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The next panel --

          3  Councilman Comrie. I excused you. It's too late. I'm

          4  the Chair.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The Chairman

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You had questions

          8  for him?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just had a

         10  question as to why they can't answer where the money

         11  is in the budget to build this project.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think that they

         13   --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilman

         16  Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to

         18  know where the money is coming to and when is this

         19  project scheduled to start construction.

         20                 MR. SHAW: We're actually planning on,

         21  since it is a renovation of an existing structure,

         22  we're looking forward to working over the summer to

         23  have it ready for occupancy in September.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you've

         25  already bid part of this project?
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          2                 MR. SHAW: No, we have not bid part of

          3  this project. We couldn't. What we're saying is

          4  because it's minimal renovations and in an existing

          5  educational facility, we'll have enough time

          6  provided that the site is approved today, we plan to

          7  have enough time in the months of June, July and

          8  August to do the renovations, perform the

          9  renovations in time for school opening in September.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the site

         11  is currently vacant?

         12                 MR. SHAW: Yes, it is.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And it just

         14  got vacant less than a year ago?

         15                 MR. SHAW: It was vacated, I think,

         16  this last January, this past January. Mercy College

         17  took the last students out.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: This will be

         19  an in- house contract as part of SCEA's in-house

         20  budget to do this?

         21                 MR. SHAW: No, it will come out of

         22  capital funds. I mean, the funding is expected to be

         23  there.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. All

         25  right. I just wanted to ask that question because I
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          2  thought that's what the Council Member was trying to

          3  find out. Where is that money coming from

          4  irregardless of the capital five- year plan. So,

          5  you're looking to have this school occupied in

          6  September?

          7                 MR. SHAW: That is the current plan to

          8  occupy giving the scarcity of spaces in the Bronx,

          9  this was part of the effort on the part of the

         10  Department of Education to get as many as seats as

         11  they could in the near term.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Whatever the

         13  seats are, you want to have it ready for September.

         14                 MR. SHAW: That is the current plan,

         15  yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         17                 MR. SHAW: You're welcome.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilwoman

         20  Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         22  Don't go away. You mentioned 630 students. That was

         23  never mentioned. The most students we spoke about

         24  when I talked with the Department of Education was

         25  four something and then we were discussing capping
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          2  it at 500. No one every said 630 students. I'm

          3  curious to know where that figure came from.

          4                 MR. SHAW: I'll let my associate,

          5  Kenrick Oh, talk about the numbers. He's the Manager

          6  of Operations for School Construction Authority.

          7                 MR. OH: The 630 number, Council

          8  Member, had come from a very early preliminary study

          9  of what the potential rehabilitated facility could

         10  accommodate. Which is why back in February when we

         11  started the public review process, we identified it

         12  without having a clear sense of functionally after

         13  more detailed design considerations what the site

         14  could actually accommodate. So, the 630 number comes

         15  from several months ago when we were first looking

         16  at the property.

         17                 From my understanding, the Department

         18  of Education does not intend to put 630 students in

         19  the facility. I believe there is a representative

         20  from the Department who can speak to their specific

         21  intentions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, when

         23  you're renovating, you're not renovating for 630

         24  kids. It will depend on whatever conversations you

         25  have with the Department of Education?
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          2                 MR. SHAW: Yes, clearly. They set the

          3  program objectives. We would do renovations in

          4  accordance with their wishes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Just to

          6  reiterate what my colleague here questioned you on,

          7  the money for the renovations, if you acquire this

          8  property, the money is in place. It doesn't depend

          9  on waiting -- I'm assume if you're going to start in

         10  May and June, you have to money available right now

         11  as we speak.

         12                 MR. OH: The funds would come out of

         13  the current capital plan. The one that we're in the

         14  final year. It would not relay upon the next plan.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         16  You're going to stay in case folks have questions.

         17                 MR. SHAW: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         20  much. Todd Ferrar from Assemblyman Jeff Klein, John

         21  Fratta, District Manager and Debra Ann Jaffee from

         22  representing many of the homeowners. I'm calling on

         23  Todd Ferrar to begin. I'm going to ask each one of

         24  you to please after he speaks, not because he's Todd

         25  Ferrar, but just because this is the way we do
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          2  things. Whoever goes first says whatever they have

          3  to say and we're not going to let him talk forever.

          4  Then if you have something to add, then please do.

          5  But if it's just a matter of repeating what he said,

          6  then we would prefer not. If you have anything,

          7  sure, please. Just identify yourself and speak.

          8                 MR. FRATTA: I'm John Fratta from

          9  Community Board 11. I have testimony from the

         10  Community Board that has to be read into the record.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you have

         12  printed testimony?

         13                 MR. FRATTA: I have my own copy of it,

         14  yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You can make

         16  copies of it for everybody. Is it long?

         17                 MR. FRATTA: Not really. About a page

         18  and a half.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You can read the

         20  whole thing.

         21                 MR. FRATTA: Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Since we don't

         23  want to discriminate anyone, you can do whatever you

         24  want as well. We're ready.

         25                 MR. FERRAR: I'm here speaking on

                                                            20

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  behalf of Assemblyman Jeff Klein who represents this

          3  area in the Bronx. Our sense is from attending

          4  community meetings, community board meetings,

          5  informational sessions provided by the Department of

          6  Education, that the community is not ready for the

          7  plan as presented by the Board of Education. There

          8  was strong opposition to it from, I'd say a very

          9  representative cross section of the people in the

         10  neighborhood, homeowners, renters, people with young

         11  children, seniors, which are a big part of our

         12  community. And what was surprising was that they

         13  were able to present to us an alternative that made

         14  a good deal of sense.

         15                 Their alternative was to take the

         16  overcrowded school at PS105, an elementary school on

         17  Brady Avenue which is about a block and a half away

         18  from the proposed site and remove the trailers, the

         19  portable units that those students use and have the

         20  Mercy College building become an annex to 105. Which

         21  incidentally is consistent with work that

         22  Assemblyman Klein has been doing across the City.

         23  Sort of analyzing the lack of playground space that

         24  has been a problem in many schools across the City

         25  because the playground space is taken up by either
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          2  parking or in many cases, portable facilities.

          3                 Our office is here to speak in favor

          4  of using the Mercy College site as an annex to PS105

          5  to relieve the overcrowding there and restore the

          6  playground space in their yard. Part of what makes a

          7  school successful in a community is the willingness

          8  of the community to be a part of it. This community

          9  came out very strongly in favor of restoring the

         10  playground space in 105 and using Mercy College as

         11  its annex. While we are sympathetic, of course, to

         12  the overcrowding situation at Columbus, we didn't

         13  feel like this was the way to solve it. Particularly

         14  because the Education Department seemed to be very

         15  unclear as to whether or not they could promise a

         16  cap on the building. I would hate to see this

         17  facility become yet another overcrowded facility in

         18  what is already a problematic situation at Columbus.

         19  That's all I have to say.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. Do you

         21  want to decide who's next? You want me to decide?

         22  You go.

         23                 MS. JAFFEE: Good morning, my name is

         24  Debra Jaffee. I would like to thank you for allowing

         25  me to speak. I attended the public hearing which we
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          2  only had one teacher that came out for the school. I

          3  feel they're only putting a band- aid on the

          4  situation. I feel the overcrowding at Columbus is

          5  outrageous. The children need a better forum for an

          6  education.

          7                 However, by putting this school on

          8  Antom Place, it affects many of the seniors and the

          9  homeowners in the area. The problem I have today

         10  with this even more than when I walked in is

         11  according to their proposal, it's says any other

         12  property in the proposed area. Directly next to 50

         13  Antom Place is a very large parking lot. The DOE has

         14  stated that they have no intention now or ever to

         15  build a school on that property.

         16                 However, due to the sneaks in the

         17  neighborhood, we have noticed that architects are

         18  out there. We at this time really do not trust what

         19  the DOE is telling us. They guaranteed us a 450 cap

         20  and then they changed their mind. At the Community

         21  Board, they came and presented other facts and then

         22  they changed it again in a private meeting.

         23                 The last meeting I attended we had a

         24  representative from the Department of Ed. Five pages

         25  of questions went unanswered. They didn't have the
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          2  facts for us. I didn't bring all the seniors with me

          3  as last week we had a bus load full to come to

          4  testify. I do respect that the schools and academies

          5  are here today. Because this is about the students.

          6  However, there are other sites in our area where

          7  they could build one permanent building.

          8                 Lastly, they have a football field.

          9  Now I am for sports in high schools. However, if

         10  you're going to allow children in 105 to be educated

         11  in portables, why not put portables on their

         12  football field. I know it's not a good idea because

         13  we all love to watch a football game. But if the

         14  schools are overcrowded, it is an alternative.

         15                 Lastly, the Police Department in our

         16  area is not prepared. Anytime that Christopher

         17  Columbus school or Academy get out, every police

         18  officer in our area is sent directly to the school.

         19  Not because the children are bad children. They're

         20  great children. They're our future. But there are

         21  problems in our area. There are gangs. The local

         22  community where this building would go, they

         23  outraged. Stores are already claiming they will

         24  close when schools let out. People are putting their

         25  condos and co- ops up for sale out of fear of this.
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          2                 I just respectfully ask that another

          3  solution be found to the high school problem. And it

          4  does go to 105 where the little kids have a chance.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          7                 MR. FRATTA: Good morning. Again, my

          8  name is John Fratta. I'm District Manager of

          9  Community Board 11 in the Bronx. I'm here today to

         10  speak on the application submitted by the SCEA for a

         11  new 630 seat high school at 15 Antom Place.

         12  Community Board 11 held a public hearing on this

         13  issue on March 18. At that hearing, we had

         14  representatives from SCEA and Region 2. We also had

         15  over a 150 members of the community. Every speaker

         16  with the exception of one who happen to be an

         17  employee of Columbus High School spoke against

         18  placing a high school at this site.

         19                 For many years, Community Board 11

         20  has been placed high on our budget request for

         21  capital projects; the construction of two new

         22  elementary schools in our district. This has been

         23  and continues to be our greatest need for education

         24  in our district. Although we agree that Columbus

         25  High School is severely overcrowded, we also
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          2  recognize that all our elementary schools in the

          3  district experience the same condition.

          4                 All the elementary schools in

          5  Community Board 11 have been forced to take school

          6  yards away and are now teaching our children in

          7  trailers that are positioned in those yards. Even

          8  with the trailers, the students are still suffering

          9  from the overcrowded conditions. We don't believe

         10  this is the way we should be educating our children.

         11                 At a meeting last Thursday in my

         12  office with Michele Cahill, she admitted to us that

         13  most of the students entering Columbus High School

         14  are at least two years below grade level in reading.

         15  These students are beginning high school with one

         16  hand tied behind their backs. And from day one in

         17  high school, have to play catch up just to succeed.

         18  This bolsters our position that we should be dealing

         19  with the overcrowdedness at the elementary school

         20  level first. By doing this, we will be giving the

         21  future ninth grade as entering high school a better

         22  chance of succeeding and going on to college.

         23                 The Board of Education has failed the

         24  children in New York when it comes to their

         25  education. By the fact that we have not dealt with
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          2  the issue of overcrowdedness for many years, has put

          3  us in the position we now find ourselves in.

          4                 Antom Place is a small residential

          5  high density community. This block is comprised of

          6  senior citizens and families with young children.

          7  Placing a high school on Antom Place would change

          8  the character of the block and cause damage to the

          9  quality of life for those residents. When Mercy

         10  College was there, my office received many quality

         11  of life complaints. Once Mercy moved, the complaints

         12  have ended.

         13                 At our Community Board Meeting held

         14  March 25, the community voted to reject the high

         15  school at this site and to urge the Department of

         16  Education to finally read our budget priorities and

         17  adhere to our request for elementary schools. Let's

         18  take care of our young children or else they will

         19  become the next set of children entering high school

         20  without being able to read.

         21                 Members of the Land Use Committee,

         22  these young people are our future and they deserve

         23  more than being taught in a trailer. Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're welcome.
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          2  Do any of my colleagues have any questions? Council

          3  Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You said there

          5  is an elementary school a block and a half away.

          6                 MS. JAFFEE: Yes, sir.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How many young

          8  people are in that school?

          9                 MR. FRATTA: That school is

         10  overcrowded by 600 students.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you said

         12  that the reading scores there are low?

         13                 MR. FRATTA: The reading scores in the

         14  elementary schools --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In that

         16  particular school?

         17                 MR. FRATTA: I'm not sure about the

         18  reading scores in that school. I'm not sure.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Somebody said

         20  something about the reading being two years behind.

         21                 MR. FRATTA: What I had said,

         22  Councilman, was based on our conversation with

         23  Michele Cahill from DOE, most students entering

         24  Columbus are reading two grades below grade level.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Most students
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          2  entering the high school?

          3                 MS. JAFFEE: Yes.

          4                 MR. FRATTA: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Not the

          6  elementary school?

          7                 MR. FRATTA: Not the elementary

          8  school, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that's not

         10  the direct feeder school for the elementary? That's

         11  a K to 5 school or what's the grade in the

         12  elementary?

         13                 MR. FRATTA: I believe it's K to 5. K

         14  to 5, K to 6.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what are

         16  their reading scores in that school? Do you know?

         17                 MR. FRATTA: Off hand, I don't know. I

         18  didn't bring that information.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But they have

         20  how many trailers?

         21                 MR. FRATTA: Over 12.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Twelve

         23  trailers?

         24                 MR. FRATTA: Over 12 trailers in the

         25  school yard, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Twelve

          3  trailers? And how long have they been there?

          4                 MR. FRATTA: About three years.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Have they come

          6  to you with any plan to expand the school?

          7                 MR. FRATTA: Absolutely not. As a

          8  matter of fact, in the five- year capital plan from

          9  the Department of Education, I just looked at it the

         10  other day, we don't have one elementary school being

         11  proposed for our district.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And in the

         13  five- year capital plan, do they talk about putting

         14  a modular on the school at least?

         15                 MR. FRATTA: No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, they want

         17  to keep the 12 trailers there for the next five

         18  years?

         19                 MR. FRATTA: Based on what I read,

         20  yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: How many kids

         22  are in the school?

         23                 MR. FRATTA: I think it's 1,600 kids.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Sixteen

         25  hundred kids from the elementary school.
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          2                 MR. FRATTA: From the elementary

          3  school.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And it's a K

          5  to 5?

          6                 MR. FRATTA: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          8                 MR. FRATTA: Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Any other

         10  questions? Any other questions? Please, Councilwoman

         11  Palma.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Mr. Fratta,

         13  when you gave your testimony, you spoke about the

         14  quality of life going down in the neighborhood if

         15  the high school is put in there. How is that?

         16                 MR. FRATTA: Based on our experience

         17  at Columbus, when children are being let in or let

         18  out, the quality of life in that community is

         19  horrendous. The 49th precinct has a 135 police

         20  officers on that tour. Most of the police officers

         21  have to be directed to Columbus High School and to

         22  the bus stop and the train station because of the

         23  amount of children that are coming out of the

         24  school. Kids are kids. We were all kids at one time.

         25  And we know after school we had to let out all our
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          2  energy. That does pose a problem on the community.

          3  On this block, which is a very small residential

          4  block, it would be horrendous.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: How many

          6  students are in Columbus?

          7                 MR. FRATTA: Columbus, I believe has

          8  over 3,500 students.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thirty- five

         10  hundred students.

         11                 MR. FRATTA: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And that's

         13  school is also overcrowded.

         14                 MR. FRATTA: Excuse me, I'm sorry, I

         15  didn't hear you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: That school is

         17  also overcrowded.

         18                 MR. FRATTA: That's definitely

         19  overcrowded. As a matter of fact, to show you the

         20  failure of the Department of Education, they took an

         21  overcrowded high school and then they placed five

         22  additional new small high schools in the same

         23  building with no kind of accountability. Principals

         24  in each of these small schools are vying for space.

         25  Even supply space. It's just not working.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: What is the

          3  position of the Borough President?

          4                 MR. FRATTA: I'm not sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you.

          6                 MR. FRATTA: You're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is there anyone

          8  in this room that knows what the position of the

          9  Borough President is? Does the Borough President

         10  know what -- I'm sorry, that was a mistake.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: May I ask a

         12  question, sir?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, please.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: May I help

         15  you and ask a question, sir?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Go ahead.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: First of all,

         18  I want to acknowledge my friend and colleague, John

         19  Fratta. I've known him for a quite bit of time. Good

         20  to see you.

         21                 MR. FRATTA: Good to see you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It's always

         23  difficult to make these choices because school

         24  facilities are needed. High school facilities,

         25  elementary school facilities and it's very rare that
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          2  you encounter a situation in which someone is saying

          3  don't build a high school. It's somewhat curious for

          4  us. For me in particular as to why that is. I hear

          5  you when you say that there is a 600 plus

          6  overcrowded situation. That sounds almost like a

          7  crisis --

          8                 MR. FRATTA: Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: -- In the

         10  sense of safety and other needs that the school

         11  might have. Have there been alternative proposals to

         12  address that concern other than this? Has there been

         13  any effort on the Board or the community part, the

         14  Borough President's part to bring to the attention

         15  of the Department of Education the need to have some

         16  capital funding for elementary school? Is there a

         17  possibility in other words that you can have both?

         18                 MR. FRATTA: Councilman, first of all,

         19  this is very difficult chore for me to do. Because I

         20  acknowledge more than anyone else that Columbus is

         21  in serious need of a new school. We have at the

         22  Community Board listed time and time again in our

         23  budget priorities the need for two new elementary

         24  schools. The problem that we have, we go through

         25  that process which is really a farce. The Department
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          2  of Education and the old Board of Education, I don't

          3  even believe read that. Had they read that, they

          4  would have known and they should know by their own

          5  statistics that we're in crisis up in Board 11. By

          6  they haven't addressed it. There have been no

          7  proposals other than what we're presenting today.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just to push

          9  this a little more, what has been the communication

         10  at all with the Borough President? Normally the

         11  Borough President is pretty involved in these types

         12  of crisis.

         13                 MR. FRATTA: We met with the Borough

         14  President about six months ago about serious

         15  problems at Columbus and serious problems at our

         16  elementary schools. He acknowledged the problem and

         17  has been fighting to find alternatives spaces.

         18  Either to lease or to buy, to purchase, to put new

         19  schools. I'm not sure where he stands on this issue

         20  right here. Because we haven't heard from him. He

         21  knows our position.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         23                 MR. FRATTA: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         25  Council Member Perkins, I appreciate your concern.
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          2  Since you came in late, let me fill in you a little

          3  bit. Both Columbus High School and the property at

          4  Antom Place are located in my district. So, I am

          5  also torn because I face both problems. Overcrowding

          6  at Columbus which is, I mean they are in double

          7  session now. Double session creates immense

          8  problems. It creates police problems, transportation

          9  problems, parking problems. That means that there is

         10  school from early in the morning until early

         11  evening. That's a problem. I just want to make the

         12  folks on this committee understand the situation.

         13                 I also understand, we have petitions

         14  here from the folks that do not want a high school

         15  at Antom Place. All of our elementary schools,

         16  truthfully, all of our schools in the Bronx are

         17  overcrowded. Although, I think my district is

         18  probably more so. It is a tough decision. I have to

         19  agree with my Community Board District Manager, the

         20  Board of Education dropped the ball in many, many

         21  ways.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The Board of the

         23  Department?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Whoever

         25  they are. I can never remember who they are. We
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          2  don't have a Board anymore. Well, the Board of

          3  Education back and now the Department of Education.

          4  A lot of these issues could have been and should

          5  have been addressed earlier. Antom Place is not a

          6  perfect place for a high school. It's in the middle

          7  of a lot of multiple dwellings. A lot of apartment

          8  buildings. It's kind of strangely located. I totally

          9  understand the concern of the folks that do not want

         10  a high school there.

         11                 I know we haven't heard from the

         12  Department of Education yet and we will be. I have

         13  spoken to the Community Board folks and I have some

         14  demands. And when I say demands, it's with a capital

         15  D that I would like to present. Again, I think we

         16  just have to come up with a solution. No one is

         17  going to be totally happy with the solution. But

         18  somewhere along the way, we have to all give in a

         19  little bit. One of the biggest fears on this

         20  property is there are two parking lots. The parking

         21  lots, each one is probably bigger than the building.

         22  So, a big fear is that Department of Education comes

         23  in, says okay, whoppee we have all this property.

         24  Let's build a really big high school here.

         25                 One of the demands we will make is
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          2  that if we agree to allow this to go through, the

          3  school will be capped at 500 students. There will be

          4  no building up. There will be no building out. We

          5  will organize a Community Advisory Board that will

          6  consist of maybe five or six members. Folks from the

          7  community that will be involved in everything that

          8  goes on in that school. That will be residents from

          9  the area.

         10                 I would asked that we have a captive

         11  lunch program so that the kids are not out in the

         12  community during lunch. I know that's done at

         13  Lehman. No, Lehman doesn't do it. That's a big

         14  problem with them. But I think Columbus does it now.

         15  Okay. One of the problems, again, that we have Antom

         16  Place is it is a very small lunch room. Again,

         17  there's no gym. There are not facilities there for a

         18  high school.

         19                 It's my understanding that these are

         20  going to be ninth graders. Again, if we could keep

         21  it and I think this is what the Community would

         22  want, if we could keep it at ninth graders, that it

         23  will always be ninth graders. Ninth graders come in,

         24  they're still a little green because they are coming

         25  out of elementary school; if you call it that
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          2  anymore. They haven't quite gotten their feet wet.

          3  They're still a little shy. I think the Community

          4  would be more receptive to handling ninth graders if

          5  we don't take them up to 10, 11, 12.

          6                 I've been told that what would happen

          7  here, there would be ninth graders for that first

          8  year. Then they go back to Columbus. Then we bring

          9  in ninth graders again, because the crisis seems to

         10  be at that ninth grade level. I also would like to

         11  ask that we cap Columbus. I have two high schools in

         12  my district; Columbus and Lehman and they both have

         13  grown out of their boundaries. It's just

         14  unbelievable. I totally realize and I know the folks

         15  sitting there too that there is a high school

         16  problem in the Bronx. There is a problem with

         17  elementary. I would like to think that we could

         18  solve the whole thing. We can't. Right now we're

         19  trying to solve the high school problem.

         20                 Again, these would be when Michele

         21  Cahill speaks, these are the demands that I would

         22  like to make. I think they're reasonable. Again,

         23  this is tough for me. I'm being torn from both

         24  sides. Excuse me? What we're asking? Cap at 500.

         25  Absolutely no up or down. You can't build up, you
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          2  can't build out, you can't build anywhere. Just stay

          3  in the confines of the building we have now. A

          4  Community Advisory Board made up of community

          5  residents. Not a large board. Five or six. You get

          6  to big, it gets too crazy. A captive lunch. Ninth

          7  graders only. And specifically outlined who is going

          8  in there. What kinds of students? Where they're

          9  coming from? Are they new kids? Are they kids that

         10  are now at Columbus? I want totally, totally,

         11  totally specific as to what's going there. That's

         12  been the problem in the past.

         13                 The Department of Education has given

         14  mixed messages all along the way. The first hearing,

         15  I don't remember the gentleman's name that was at

         16  the hearing. He shouldn't have been there because he

         17  really blew the whole thing. The next meeting,

         18  Michele was there. I have had several meetings with

         19  her. I've had meetings with other folks.

         20                 The other thing would be to cap

         21  Columbus. I don't know. There may be some things I'm

         22  not thinking of. And again, I would hope that at

         23  some point, we could sit down and if there something

         24  that the community feels we should be doing, we

         25  could discuss that. That the Department of Education
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          2  is totally open to discussion on this with the

          3  community, with myself.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. Any of

          5  my colleagues have any questions?

          6                 Thank you very much. We will hear

          7  from Richard Cintron representing Christopher

          8  Columbus Campus.

          9                 MR. CINTRON: Good morning. My name is

         10  Richard Cintron. I'm the Principal of the Aster

         11  Collegic Academy. I'm here today representing all

         12  the schools presently located at the Christopher

         13  Columbus Campus. The Aster Collegic Academy, the

         14  Bronx High School for Visual Arts, Christopher

         15  Columbus High School, the Columbus Institute for

         16  Math and Science, Global Enterprise and Appellant

         17  Preparatory Academy.

         18                 Together between parents, students,

         19  faculty members, we have well over 1,000 petitions

         20  in support of our cause. I want to thank this

         21  Committee for giving us the opportunity to address

         22  you concerning such an important issue that affects

         23  all of our lives. Securing adequate space for all of

         24  our students for the September 2004 year.

         25                 We are here today fighting for the
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          2  very lives of the over 4,200 students, parents and

          3  educators at our campus. This issue of overcrowding

          4  at our campus is a serious one with the school

          5  operating at close to 185 percent capacity. And the

          6  idea of denying 500 seats to our children that are

          7  available at the Mercy College Campus which is only

          8  blocks away from our campus seems hard to believe.

          9                 Without these seats, our students

         10  will continue to suffer from late sessions. Getting

         11  out as late as 6:00 at night. Very early class start

         12  times. As early as 7:00 in the morning. Continuous

         13  overcrowding in the hallways. A lack of opportunity

         14  for extra curricular activities such as sports and

         15  clubs and teams. Lack of space for enrichment and

         16  remedial classes as well as a lack of space for

         17  tutoring and teacher professional development

         18  workshops.

         19                 All of our schools are committed to

         20  providing our students and teachers with dedicated

         21  space to develop cultures that foster a love for

         22  learning and a passion for education. These goals

         23  become extremely difficult to achieve when we are

         24  jammed together, fighting for not only classroom

         25  space, but literally breathing room as well.

                                                            42

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 The individual connections that are

          3  necessary for all of our students to make, both with

          4  teachers and with other students are becoming

          5  nonexistent as more and more space is whittled away.

          6  Every aspect of our student's lives is negatively

          7  affected by the lack of available space. While we

          8  are aware that the Bronx leadership is currently

          9  organizing to obtain more capital funding to build

         10  new facilities for our students, these funds are

         11  indeed hard to come by and do not seem like they

         12  will happen immediately.

         13                 In our situation, however, we seem to

         14  have found a viable and short- term solution to this

         15  growing problem for our campus. Our students would

         16  benefit greatly from the extra seats available at

         17  the Mercy Campus. And would in turn would be a great

         18  benefit for the surrounding businesses and community

         19  as well. These are wonderful students who deserve

         20  the opportunity to continue to learn, grow and

         21  experience the world around them in the best

         22  possible conditions.

         23                 These students who have already

         24  demonstrated a strong sense of love for learning and

         25  a kinship with the surrounding communities need all
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          2  of our help so they can continue to become the

          3  graduates and citizens of whom we are all proud of.

          4  Students and citizens who are willing to take time

          5  from their day to come down and fight for a cause

          6  that they believe in. Students who are being taught

          7  to be active participants in their community. Not

          8  just book learners.

          9                 Thank you for all of your

         10  consideration and time. We are confident that you

         11  will continue to do all that you can and to continue

         12  to help our students receive the best education that

         13  is possible.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That was

         15  exciting. Councilwoman Provenzano.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         17  That was beautiful. Now you can see the dilemma I'm

         18  in. I didn't even realize it was 4,200. I don't

         19  think our community board folks did either. That's

         20  insane. The really sad thing about all of this is

         21  that and I've had several conversations again with

         22  the Department of Education, is that the kids are

         23  the ones that are suffering. Even with these small

         24  schools, time and again I've said to the Department

         25  of Ed, you take these small schools, you take a
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          2  hundred kids, a hundred kids, a hundred kids, the

          3  concept of the school is great. But what they're

          4  starting to is move them from one school to the

          5  next. For instance, Lehman has three small schools.

          6  Next year, two of them are going to Stevenson.. You

          7  can't do that. You can't just pick up the kids like

          8  they were a bunch of toys and put them from one

          9  place to another.

         10                 It is a huge problem. I would like to

         11  think that the Department of Education is really

         12  looking at this on a grand scale without putting a

         13  band- aid, band- aid, a band- aid. We need a

         14  operation. Band- aids aren't going to help. I do

         15  understand your situation and I do understand yours.

         16  We have to come up with a solution. Maybe when the

         17  Department of Education speaks, they'll find a

         18  solution for us.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         20  colleagues have any questions? Thank you very much.

         21  The petitions you can deliver to Councilwoman

         22  Provenzano.

         23                 MR. CINTRON: Thank you. I will.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Michele Cahill

         25  from the Department of Education.
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          2                 MS. CAHILL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          3  Council Members and Councilwoman Provenzano. I

          4  appreciate the opportunity to speak today on this

          5  really crucial matter for Bronx teenagers, for Bronx

          6  High School, students and for their opportunity to

          7  get a good high school education.

          8                 We do have a crisis in the need for

          9  high quality high school programs and high school

         10  seats in the Bronx. There are approximately 4,200

         11  students at Columbus High School making it operating

         12  at over 180 percent capacity. Last year it was at

         13  153 percent capacity and the overall utilization in

         14  Bronx High Schools in 133 percent. This is a

         15  situation that clearly demands an overall strategy

         16  and a comprehensive strategy and the matter today is

         17  only one small piece of that strategy. A difficult

         18  piece for a decision making. But we think also an

         19  urgent priority.

         20                 We began focusing very seriously on

         21  the issue of Bronx High Schools the beginning of

         22  this school year understanding the tremendous

         23  problem that had come forward and particularly

         24  realizing that last year, this year's school

         25  overcrowding had been due to unfortunately a lack of
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          2  planning and understanding that the demographics in

          3  the Bronx were such that the middle school

          4  population was the peak one. And that this year,

          5  there was an increase of about 1,000 to 1,500 eighth

          6  graders.

          7                 Looking into this immediately, I saw

          8  that we were going to have 1,600 more eighth to

          9  ninth graders in September 2004 than in September

         10  2003. So, our already extraordinarily overcrowded

         11  situation was going to be worse. We needed to do an

         12  aggressive pursuit of additional facilities to

         13  increase the supply of seats available both through

         14  new acquisition, lease space and identification of

         15  currently under utilized facilities and also making

         16  more options available to students in the Bronx. And

         17  some of the educational options programs other

         18  places in the City as well.

         19                 Another problem that has contributed

         20  to the overcrowding in many of our large high

         21  schools is that students are not successful. Many

         22  students are not successful in these schools. They

         23  don't gain enough credits to go from ninth to tenth

         24  grade to pursue their education and to complete

         25  their education in four years. They wound up staying
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          2  five and six years and even sometimes seven years.

          3  In the end, often still not graduating. This is a

          4  tragedy for them and it also makes for a campus

          5  situation that no one is happy with. In which many

          6  students having poor attendance, there is a whole

          7  range of problems associated with this.

          8                 In Christopher Columbus High School

          9  there are many students who have not been

         10  progressing the way they need to be. The small

         11  school strategy is a strategy that the Department

         12  has been pursuing actually because it is showing

         13  itself to be more effective in students passing

         14  their courses. They have a relationship with their

         15  teachers. They get to be known well. They have much

         16  higher attendance rates. All of the Bronx small

         17  schools, no one has an attendance rate of under 90

         18  percent. Fully three quarters of those students are

         19  making it from ninth to tenth grade as compared to

         20  often less than 50 percent.

         21                 We really are stuck in a somewhat

         22  difficult, I hope, transition period in which we are

         23  pursuing a strategy that has promised to really

         24  solve the problem. But we need to have much more

         25  facilities. We have done an analysis of the most
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          2  overcrowded schools and ways to address them, have

          3  pursued facilities and identified the Mercy College

          4  building as a very good space for high school

          5  students. We needed to be ready for September '04.

          6  It's why we had to do this quickly in order to

          7  address these overcrowding problems.

          8                 Our plans are to have this be a

          9  facility for fewer than 500 students. We were

         10  putting in a cap at 500 after our conversations with

         11  the Council Member. The discrepancy in the over 600

         12  and the 500 is the discrepancy in the amount that

         13  the facility could be built out to, what is the

         14  maximum that you could built it out to. We have

         15  directed the SCEA that we want this facility to be

         16  built out for 25 students per class, not for any

         17  larger classes which brings its actual capacity to

         18  478. Which is the number that I have given you in

         19  the last several weeks.

         20                 The way that we would bring students

         21  or utilize this building I think has been confusing

         22  and to some extent its been confusing because we are

         23  trying to solve a short- term problem and make a

         24  good long- term plan. It's also confusing because we

         25  are attempting to be responsive about this and to

                                                            49

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  involve others in helping to problem solve on this.

          3                 Clearly, we will put no buildings on

          4  the parking lot. In addition to my stating that and

          5  saying that with the Chancellor's endorsement, I

          6  also want to point out that there is a lease on much

          7  of the parking lot which goes for about 20 years

          8  more with a group of doctors who are nearby. We are

          9  continuing their lease to be able to park in a part

         10  of the parking lot. We are absolutely committed to

         11  doing a Community Advisory group as Councilwoman

         12  Provenzano has asked for to be completely involved

         13  in the planning with us in the facility.

         14                 I would actually hope that we would

         15  be able to turn that into something that would be a

         16  real asset for the students and the faculty in the

         17  school rather than seeing it as only being directed

         18  toward reducing problems; of course, we want it to

         19  do that, and increase in safety. That we would

         20  actually look toward a way in which the community

         21  could become more integrated with the school and

         22  think about all kinds of programs and community

         23  development kinds of activities that can happen. We

         24  are doing that.

         25                 All of the Bronx new schools have
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          2  community partners of one form or another. Pious 12

          3  (phonetic), Pathways, For Youth, Citizens Advice

          4  Bureau, all of those organizations are involved as

          5  partners with small schools in the Bronx. It's

          6  working very productively. We would like to have

          7  this Community Advisory, Council.

          8                 We would not build up, around, or in

          9  any other way address that. We will cap this

         10  building at no more than 500 students. We will

         11  address the overcrowding in Columbus by taking

         12  students who would be going to Columbus and to

         13  programs that are being created for this. Small

         14  programs that would be in this building. These are

         15  students who would go to Columbus and instead they

         16  will be on the register of Columbus. But they will

         17  be here. That way you know we are actually reducing

         18  the overcrowding in this building.

         19                 Our target is to bring Columbus down

         20  to 3,730 students in September '04 through a number

         21  of mechanisms. This being one of them, not the only

         22  one. We've also been working on the high school

         23  admissions process to have students who are zoned

         24  for Columbus get other choices.

         25                 I want to address things like captive
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          2  lunch. It is the first time I've heard that. It

          3  seems to me to be reasonable. We are building out. I

          4  know eating facilities in that, I think, we have to

          5  go to the design and make sure we can do that. That

          6  would be the kind of issue that I think we would

          7  address with the Community Council.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes, since

          9  we're not building for those extra 130 or 140 kids.

         10  Maybe we could do something to have a lunch room for

         11  the kids. I know the facility --

         12                 MS. CAHILL: We've already asked for

         13  that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         15                 MS. CAHILL: I just didn't know what

         16  the desires of the --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: This

         18  current facility, I think has a lunch room that

         19  serves under 100 kids or a 100 persons. It was a

         20  college.

         21                 MS. CAHILL: We will address. We will

         22  look into that and address that in the best that we

         23  can.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And you

         25  could understand our concern. I think that would
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          2  help the community be more accepting since the kids

          3  are there. They are in the school. And they're there

          4  for the day. Which to me that's the way school used

          5  to be. That's the way they should be. Go to school

          6  in the morning at 9:00. Get out at 3:00.

          7                 MS. CAHILL: All I'm saying is a

          8  commitment to absolutely working on that with you. I

          9  don't have to check with them on building. But I'm

         10  with the principals and others. I don't see that

         11  should be a problem.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Not only

         13  that. The kids at Columbus are used to a captive

         14  lunch.

         15                 MS. CAHILL: That's what I've heard.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

         17  They eat lunch at school. We'll, that's the term

         18  they use. I don't know of any other term.

         19                 MS. CAHILL: I think we'll talk about

         20  having --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: If you

         22  want to change it --

         23                 MS. CAHILL: -- A good residential, I

         24  mean dining facilities and working.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You work
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          2  on that.

          3                 MS. CAHILL: The small schools really

          4  do try to create community and so I think we do want

          5  to avoid language that suggest that we are trying to

          6  control young people and more that we're trying to

          7  help them become good citizens. And reach their

          8  potential and have a way of doing it.

          9                 Finally, I want to address the issue

         10  of who would go to the school in the short- term and

         11  long- term. In the short- term, we have a very clear

         12  objective of relieving overcrowding in Columbus and

         13  starting these new programs that will become

         14  schools. What we would like to do is work with you

         15  and the community advisory counsel to plan what

         16  should be there in the end. No more than 500

         17  students. A target of 450 students. One possibility

         18  would that one of these programs would grow into a

         19  school there and have indeed a small school which is

         20  the way we have things other places. The reason that

         21  I say this is that I don't know if you've always

         22  want just ninth graders. But we can certainly talk

         23  about that. And that also the Department in the

         24  five- year capital plan and I'll end on this and

         25  answer any questions. Well I should end on two
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          2  points about the capital plans. Plans to create more

          3  high schools, more small schools in the Bronx and so

          4  we will be relieving the overcrowding. But in any

          5  case, we want to make this a safe well functioning

          6  building.

          7                 To address the issue of the

          8  elementary school, in the five- year capital plan,

          9  for Community School District 11, we are planning

         10  six new elementary schools in one PS189 is in design

         11  which I think is not too far from Columbus.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What's the

         13  schedule for those five schools in your plan?

         14                 MS. CAHILL: They're scheduled for

         15  over the five years. One of them is in design so

         16  that would go into construction at the first year of

         17  plan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: When are the

         19  others in design? Do you know?

         20                 MS. CAHILL: I don't know.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Where is

         22  189? I don't know. Do you know? Can you tell me

         23  where that is?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Have the sites

         25  been selected for these five schools?
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          2                 MS. CAHILL: The site has been

          3  selected for 189. I don't know if the sites have

          4  been selected for the others. They are in the

          5  capital plan in terms of the money allocation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That would

          7  be K to 5?

          8                 MS. CAHILL: K to 5.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Is it K to

         10  8 or K to 5?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Has the

         12  Community Board --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: K to 8.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- Selected

         15  sites for five schools? Do you have five sites to

         16  build schools?

         17                 MR. CINTRON: We're still trying to

         18  identify that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Did you

         20  say K to 8?

         21                 MS. CAHILL: K to 8 is what I'm being

         22  told.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'm all

         24  for K to 8. All schools should be K to 8 and high

         25  school.
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          2                 MS. CAHILL: That's what our capital

          3  plan is moving toward.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Eliminate

          5  the middle school.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          7  colleagues have any questions?

          8                 MS. CAHILL: I'm finished.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I have one

         10  question. What do you do?

         11                 MS. CAHILL: I'm the Senior Counselor

         12  for Education Policy through the Chancellor. I have

         13  significant responsibility in the area of planning

         14  and high school.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Fine, thank you.

         16  Councilman Perkins.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         18  very much, Mr. Chairman. I also want to extend my

         19  appreciation to Councilwoman Provenzano for sharing

         20  her points of view with the community's points of

         21  view about this project which obviously is somewhat

         22  complexed. It clearly represents a great deal of

         23  challenges for not only the system but more

         24  importantly for the students. I'm going to have to

         25  leave. So, I'm going to take this opportunity to
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          2  vote. But I want to make some observations and what

          3  not before I do so.

          4                 Number one, captive lunches must be a

          5  term that's eliminated.

          6                 MS. CAHILL: I agree.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It represents

          8  a hostile point of view about the students as if

          9  they are prisoners or something that has to be

         10  prevented from getting out into the community. Which

         11  brings me to my second point. The sense I get is

         12  that this is a solution that attempts to prevent a

         13  very bad scenario on the community that could be

         14  perpetuated by the students. I think that's an

         15  incentive, that's a motivation again that not only

         16  degrades the students, but also represents a

         17  negative as opposed to a positive. I think that

         18  there is a great potential for positive here.

         19                 I think what I understand to be the

         20  Councilwoman's negotiated solution represents a

         21  potential for those ninth graders to really have an

         22  outstanding experience. Smaller classrooms. Sort of

         23  isolated in terms of their own themselves and being

         24  able to get the best that there may be in a better

         25  environment for them. I think I would like to look
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          2  at this from that point of view. Because what I've

          3  been hearing for the most part has been more from a

          4  negative point of view.

          5                 I have to extend again my great

          6  respect for the Community Boards for having wrestled

          7  with this. I was a little concerned about the

          8  interpretation of how the quality of life for the

          9  community would be undermined. I understand to some

         10  extent the concern about students. Having been one a

         11  100 years ago and what not and I take public

         12  transportation. I'm not blind or unaware of what

         13  some of the concerns are. I don't think we should be

         14  designing schools or coming up with solutions that

         15  are in response to those type of negative

         16  perceptions of the students. That's part of one of

         17  the concerns that I have.

         18                 The other thing is, I like the idea

         19  of the advisory group. And I assume in that advisory

         20  group model, there will be student representation.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I wouldn't

         22  think there would be. I think I kind of know where

         23  you're going with this.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm going

         25  with you. No, no --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: No, let me

          3  just tell you something. The ethnic makeup of 105

          4  which is a block and a half away is 51 ethnic groups

          5  are represented in that school.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Madeline, you

          7  know I love you. I don't have to be subtle.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm telling

         10  you frankly that when you talk about captive

         11  students, captive lunches. I don't care whether

         12  they're black kids or white kids. The suggestion, if

         13  they talking about making captive lunch rooms for

         14  Council Members, it would seem -- it's the word

         15  captive.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I agree

         17  with you that the word probably sounds a little --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, it's the

         19  word captive. And that's all I'm saying.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: We cannot use

         22  those type of terms when we're talking about

         23  students.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well,

         25  that's always been the term that was used. Let's
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          2  have a contest. Come up with a different word.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Great idea.

          4  But all I'm saying is since we have the person

          5  that's in charge with the instructional stuff or

          6  whatever, we need to start looking at the kind of

          7  term that we use as we talk about students.

          8                 MS. CAHILL: I agree.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That's all

         10  I'm asking.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

         13  conclude before I get Madeline real upset.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: We're not

         15  even on TV, unfortunately.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: When is the

         17  TV when we need it? The other thing I want to say

         18  with respect to the students. This is an

         19  extraordinarily -- I mean, I love seeing the

         20  students here. This is the best class experience

         21  that they could get.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: A whole

         23  pile of them outside.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Huh?

         25  (clapping)

                                                            61

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: A whole

          3  bunch outside.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I think this

          5  helps them to see their government make decisions

          6  about their lives and I want to commend all who took

          7  the opportunity to make sure that they were here. We

          8  need to do this more often. Maybe we have to

          9  captivate them somehow or other. But in any case,

         10  with having said all that, I just wanted to take an

         11  opportunity to vote at this point. I want to vote in

         12  favor of the proposal and I want to again commend my

         13  colleague for having gotten involved with this so

         14  intimately and so positively. So that something good

         15  could happen for the students and I would hope that

         16  setting proves to be an enriching setting. Something

         17  that might represent a model for similar kinds of

         18  possibilities in the future. Thank you very much. I

         19  vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You called me

         22  to vote? I'd like to explain my vote. No, thank you

         23  very much. I vote aye.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilwoman --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'd just
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          2  like to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Just one minute.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          6  colleagues have any questions?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair. Deputy Chancellor Cahill, I was concerned

          9  regarding the plans for the elementary school that

         10  it came out that you have 12 trailers there with no

         11  plan for nothing in the five- year capital plan. I

         12  would hope as part of this discussion, if there is

         13  something to help mitigate that, you are concerned

         14  about both schools are way overcrowded for their

         15  population and need. To build self- esteem. To have

         16  an opportunity for children to have a positive

         17  learning environment.

         18                 I would hope that you would do some

         19  kind of real plan to do some mitigation for these

         20  1,600 kids. Especially with 12 trailers that have

         21  been there for umpteen years. I think that's also a

         22  difficult problem. Even though there is a capital

         23  plan to build five schools, nothing has been sited

         24  and I'm somewhat familiar with that area. I don't

         25  get to hang out in the Bronx too often. But I
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          2  realize that's a very dense area with no available

          3  space. To do pie in the sky capital plans without

          4  acquiring a space, as you know that's been my

          5  personal issue that we need to buy the space now. We

          6  will build on it later. But we need to acquire and

          7  buy that space now. It's unfair to the next

          8  generation of children that we will not have a real

          9  opportunity to mitigate this as quickly as possible.

         10                 I'm listening to everything that's

         11  going on here. I'm not happy with the Department's

         12  way that they really addressing this need. While we

         13  understand a need to have smaller schools, you're

         14  still not resolving a long- term problem at Columbus

         15  High School. You're still not resolving the long-

         16  term problem at the elementary school. I feel that

         17  you have available space there that you're going to

         18  have to work with the community to do an additional

         19  building. That's my personal feeling. You're going

         20  to have to work with the community to do that

         21  quickly.

         22                 I want to commend Council Member

         23  Provenzano for being an activist on this issue and

         24  doing everything she can to include her community in

         25  this process even when it seemed like they were
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          2  being rolled over for a minute. And also I want to

          3  commend the young people. I hope that you do learn

          4  from this situation. That there is always a

          5  possibility to change. There is always a possibility

          6  to be an activist. There's always a possibility to

          7  have your voice heard. I agree with Councilman

          8  Perkins statement on the captive. I won't go over

          9  that again. Because I don't want to get captivated

         10  later.

         11                 We need to build self- esteem in this

         12  system. There is no way in this process to build

         13  self- esteem without including the community of

         14  young people. Without including the community board.

         15  If we're going to take the village to raise a child,

         16  we need to make sure that the village is preeminent

         17  and not the Department of Education. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

         19  colleagues have any questions? Councilwoman

         20  Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Just one

         22  last thing. You pretty much have agreed to all of

         23  the -- now, I'll go to demands to suggestions since

         24  we got what we wanted. We'll soften it a little bit.

         25  The only question I have is do we get this writing
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          2  or are we trusting each other? In writing.

          3                 MS. CAHILL: Yes, we will send to you

          4  a letter. I think the only place where we have, just

          5  so that we're very honest and clear here, where we

          6  have more work to do with you is the long- term plan

          7  for the use of the building. Not in an abstract way

          8  whether it becomes one school or whether it

          9  continues to be --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Are we

         11  discussing ninth graders are we discussing --

         12                 MS. CAHILL: Right, right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. I

         14  think that's agreeable.

         15                 MS. CAHILL: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I can see

         17  how maybe just keeping kids there and move along for

         18  the four years could work too. But again, that's

         19  something that we could discuss.

         20                 MS. CAHILL: We need to continue with

         21  that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I would

         23  like to thank the Committee and the Chairperson for

         24  being so understanding and for allowing all of us to

         25  be here, the kids. And I'm really serious, I expect
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          2  to hear from Columbus High School. We're going to

          3  find another word -- excuse me. You don't go to

          4  Columbus. You're not in this test. You're not in

          5  this contest. So, that we could work that out.

          6                 MS. CAHILL: I want to say from the

          7  Department we are also very proud of our students

          8  and appreciate the opportunity for them to have this

          9  opportunity to see how government works as well.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And my

         11  friend there, Debra Jaffee, who wanted to bring down

         12  her bus load of seniors but didn't. I always had

         13  this vision and it never really works out and I've

         14  done it a little bit in my community. This all

         15  inter- generational stuff and maybe we could work on

         16  something like that with the kids that are at the

         17  school. They have a lot of seniors in that

         18  community. We now have kids that are going to school

         19  there. Maybe we could give some thought to doing

         20  some inter- generational program.

         21                 MS. CAHILL: Great.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I want to

         23  thank all you for coming out members of this

         24  Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very
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          2  much. I just wanted to and I'm not going to

          3  reiterate anything that was said. I just want to

          4  make it clear that the Land Use Staff continues to

          5  educate me. I think some of us on a regular basis. I

          6  just wanted my colleagues to know that we don't have

          7  the power to vote yes on this on a condition of any

          8  sort. When Council Member Provenzano asks for it in

          9  writing, we can either vote yes or no. But we can't

         10  vote yes on the condition that they do something for

         11  us such as giving it in writing. So the condition in

         12  writing is a trust and it has nothing to do with the

         13  way we're voting. We should keep that in mind.

         14  Having said that, I recommend the yes vote.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chair Felder.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I want to

         19  commend the Chair for having such a lively and

         20  informative hearing. I want to congratulate again,

         21  Council Member Provenzano and also encourage the

         22  young people to be involved in your community and in

         23  the community. I can tell you that I do have an

         24  inter- generational program that I work with some

         25  young people. It's a wonderful opportunity for you
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          2  to learn. The best way to learn is from older people

          3  that have been through and suffered through and have

          4  been able to share their examples with you. I would

          5  encourage you to look to that to help you shape your

          6  lives and careers.

          7                 I still want to re- encourage the

          8  Department of Ed to buy those sites and focus on

          9  getting those sites in that area and to work with

         10  the Community Board to do that siting. I'm very

         11  concerned about siting. My district is also

         12  overcrowded with no sites. I just think it's a

         13  terrible policy for the Department of Ed to know

         14  that there is overcrowding; to know that there are

         15  issues and are not focusing on acquiring the sites.

         16  Whatever their capital plan is, they need to acquire

         17  those sites. Especially when the numbers are known.

         18  Wherever the dollars are going to come from, at

         19  least we can get those sites locked in before we

         20  lose the valuable property.

         21                 This was a fortunate occurrence that

         22  you had the colleges shut down. We need to focus in

         23  even harder on finding available locations so that

         24  we can build more classrooms. So, we can have the

         25  opportunities as suburban schools to get down to a
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          2  lower class size. I vote aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Palma.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at

          8  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          9  abstentions, referred to the full Land Use

         10  Committee.

         11                 (Meeting Adjourned at 12:45)
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